
Please ask for: Democratic Services DDI (01362) 656343
e-mail: democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk

AGENDA
Committee - GREATER THETFORD 

DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP
Date & Time - TUESDAY, 27TH NOVEMBER, 2018 

AT 2.00 PM
Venue - THETFORD TOWN COUNCIL, KING 

STREET, THETFORD, NORFOLK, 
IP24 2AP

PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE 
REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE TELEPHONES



Greater Thetford Development Partnership
Tuesday, 27th November, 2018

Page(s)
herewith

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES 
To note apologies for absence,

2. FUTURE OF HEALTHCARE IN GREATER THETFORD 
Kay Boyden, STP Estates Project Manager (Norfolk Community Health 
Care Trust)
Phil Shreeve, Public Health (Norfolk County Council)
Cal Deane (NHS Primary Care)

3. GOVERNANCE 

a) New Chairman Appointment

b) Communities Sub Group - recruitment of independent members
4. BRIEF REPORT UPDATES 

a) Expansion of parking at Thetford Station 1 - 3 

Update Paper

b) Ely Railway Junction improvements 4 - 5 

Update Paper

c) Thetford Kingsfleet (SUE) 6 - 7 

Update Paper

d) Thetford Enterprise Park 8 - 9 

Update Paper

e) Social Housing (Flagship)  

Verbal Update.

f) Network Improvement Strategy (roads) 10 - 11 

Update Paper

5. MARKET TOWN INITIATIVE 12 - 14
Update Paper.

6. VISION SETTING/ENGAGEMENT EVENT 

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

a) Croxton Road Cycle link - Norfolk County Council



Greater Thetford Development Partnership
Tuesday, 27th November, 2018

Page(s)
herewith

8. SUMMARY OF AGREED ACTIONS AND REPORT HIGHLIGHTS 

9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board
27 Nov 2018

Item No xx

Expansion of parking at Thetford Railway Station
Report of Robert Campbell

Summary
Preliminary work has been undertaken to establish the feasibility of expanding car 
parking provision at Thetford Railway Station 

Recommendations

(i)  That the board approve further work to establish whether expansion of car 
parking at Thetford Railway Station is likely to be feasible to achieve.

1. Introduction
Thetford Station currently has parking for 35 cars, including 2 disabled bays.  The 
parking is managed by NCP on behalf of Greater Anglia Trains and is available to users 
on a chargeable basis.

Additional parking is provided for taxis and there is one 20 minute short stay slot 
designed for drop off and pick up.

2. Previous discussions
The board has previously discussed the possibility of providing additional parking by 
utilising some of the existing allotment space on the other side of the tracks from the 
current parking.  The idea was based on Thetford Town Council releasing some of the 
allotment land providing that a similar sized plot be made available for allotment use 
from either District or County land ownership.

The need for additional parking is based on likely increased demand from residents of 
the new Kingsfleet housing development which has now started construction of the first 
phase.

3. Discussions with Greater Anglia
An initial informal discussion has taken place with Greater Anglia to establish whether 
they would be supportive of enlarging car parking at Thetford Station.  The discussions 
confirmed the following:-

- Greater Anglia accepts that increased demand for car parking is a likely 
consequence of the Kingsfleet housing development.

- Greater Anglia is supportive of the idea to increase car parking.

1

Agenda Item 4a



- Greater Anglia would not purchase land for car parking.  The freehold for car 
parking land is held by Network Rail and then leased to Greater Anglia who would 
build and manage (via NCP) the additional car parking.

- It was not thought likely that Network Rail would be willing to pay for the land – 
but this needs to be further investigated.

4. Road access to the allotment land

Officers have identified two potential road access points to the allotment land.  
One potential access is off Station Lane and a second potential access is off 
Croxton Road.  This provides potential access at either the western or eastern 
end of the current allotment land.  The western access is closest the station 
platforms.

A full survey would be required to establish whether either of these would be 
practical and what level of road improvement would be required.

5. Amount of allotment land which would be required

The allotment site currently has around 100 plots.

As a rough initial estimate, provision of an additional 50 car parking spaces is 
likely to require no more than 10% of the current plots.

6. Next steps

Suggested next steps are:-

Meet with Greater Anglia to discuss the scheme in detail.  Establish how many 
additional parking spaces would be desirable to meet predicted future need.

Establish whether there are alternative potential sites in public ownership to 
replace the allotment space which would be lost to car parking.

If the scheme looks to be feasible, come back to the board with a further update 
seeking permission to proceed to prepare a costed proposal.

7. Contribution to Board Objectives

To revitalise Thetford town centre and improve connectivity with public and other 
forms of transport.

8. Recommendations

(i)  That the board approve further work to establish whether expansion of car 
parking at Thetford Railway Station is likely to be feasible to achieve.

Officer Contact

If you have any questions about matters contained in this paper please get in touch with:

2



Name Telephone Number Email Address

Robert Campbell 01362 656808 robert.campbell@breckland.gov.uk

Appendices

None.

Background Documents

None.

3



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board
Ely Area Enhancements Update
November 2018

Ely is at the convergence of passenger lines linking Norwich and Cambridge, 
Norwich and Peterborough, Ipswich and Peterborough, Birmingham and Stansted, 
and King’s Lynn and Cambridge as well as on the freight route from the Port of 
Felixstowe to the Midlands. The rail infrastructure is at capacity and is the reason 
why the train operator is unable to fulfil the franchise requirement to run half hourly 
services throughout the day from King’s Lynn to Cambridge; as well as being a 
blockage to any increase in frequency of the services listed above.

The Ely Task Force brings together DfT, Network Rail, local authorities and the local 
enterprise partnership. It is overseeing project work, funded by (the former) GCGP 
LEP, New Anglia LEP and the Strategic Freight Network (part of Network Rail), to 
identify a scheme option to unlock additional train paths through the Ely area. In 
tandem with this Cambridgeshire County Council is leading on a road-based study 
centred around the village of Queen Adelaide where there are three level crossings 
on the B1382. 

4

Agenda Item 4b



Currently technical work is being undertaken to develop a Strategic Outline Business 
Case. This is assessing how to address the issues and identify preferred road and 
rail option(s). This stage of work is due to be completed in late spring 2019. At this 
point, if further funding is secured, the preferred option(s) will be taken forward. The 
current timetable envisages that – subject to successfully securing funding at each 
stage to take the scheme(s) forward and successful development of the scheme(s) 
through consultation and the statutory processes, the Secretary of State could sign 
off funding in 2022, allowing delivery shortly thereafter.

5



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board
27 Nov 18

Item No xx

Kingsfleet Sustainable Urban Extension – Update

Report of Matthew Hogan, Executive Manager for Growth 

Summary

This paper provides an update on activity to unlock the Kingsfleet Sustainable Urban 
Extension in order to support development of the site and bring forward housing growth within 
Thetford. 

Recommendations

(i) That the board notes the update provided within, and supports the ongoing work of 
officers to bring the needed infrastructure to the Kingsfleet SUE site in order to secure 
housing growth through the site. 

1. Introduction

The Kingsfleet Sustainable Urban Extension is a major strategic housing and employment 
development site on the northern side of Thetford, adjacent to the A11 dual carriageway.

The site, which was awarded planning consent in 2015, has outline permission for 5,000 new 
homes. A major constraint associated with the delivery of the SUE relates to utility provision, 
most notably the substantial upfront and one-off infrastructure requirements with regards to 
power connectivity. The site has some power capacity, but this is constrained at a level which 
would provide power to c.343 homes. 

The site is in the ownership of two landowners, and is promoted by Pigeon Ltd; a private land 
promotor. Given the strategic importance of the site with regards to Thetford and the wider 
district, officers at Breckland have been undertaking a range of activity to bring the site forward. 

2. Progress

There are two notable areas of progress to update with regards to the Kingsfleet SUE. 

Firstly, this includes an update on progress with the development of Phase 1a; the first 343 
homes on the site that are not affected by power constraints. Following the award of ‘reserved 
matters’ planning consent earlier in the year, Phase 1a is now ‘on site’ with Hopkins Homes 
undertaking the necessary amendments to the highway to enable access to the first homes. 
Hopkins Homes have expressed an intention to see the first completions on the site in April / 
May 2019.  

Secondly, and in respect of the work to overcome the constraints on the development of the 
wider site, officers are working with Homes England to finalise the due diligence concerning a 
£9.95m grant under the Housing Infrastructure Fund programme to front fund the delivery of a 

6

Agenda Item 4c



primary substation, required to provide power to the remaining c4,600 homes. Upon completion 
of the due diligence process, and subject to final sign-off from Homes England, work will be able 
to commence on the project to bring power to the site, enabling further tranches of the SUE to 
come forward for delivery. 

4. Contribution to Board Objectives

- To seek and lobby for investment and improvement in strategic infrastructure.

- To promote Greater Thetford as a ‘destination of choice’

5. Recommendations

That the board notes the update provided within, and supports the ongoing work of 
officers to bring the needed infrastructure to the Kingsfleet SUE site in order to secure 
housing growth through the site.

Officer Contact

If you have any questions about matters contained in this paper please get in touch with:

Name Telephone Number Email Address

Matthew Hogan 01775 764524 matthew.hogan@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Appendices

None

Background Documents

None

7



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board
27 Nov 18

Item No xx

Thetford Enterprise Park employment site - Update
Report of Robert Campbell

Summary

This paper provides an update on activity to unlock the Thetford Enterprise Park 
employment site in order to support development of the site and create employment 
opportunities.

Recommendations

(i) That the board supports the ongoing work of officers to bring the needed 
infrastructure to the TEP site in order to secure development on the site.

1. Introduction

Thetford Enterprise Park (TEP) is an 18ha development site on the northern side of Thetford, adjacent to 
the A11 dual carriageway.

There are opportunities for land purchases, leases and joint ventures which will create a major 
technology focused enterprise park, both to provide new modern facilities for existing Thetford based 
companies and also to attract more high tech companies into the area.  Thetford has a substantial 
established manufacturing cluster and benefits from a well trained local workforce.

It is estimated that the site has the capacity to deliver 52,940 sq m of employment space with additional 
potential for a hotel development.  The site has the potential to attract between 1,500 and 2,500 jobs 
given its prime location within the Cambridge Norwich Tech Corridor (CNTC) and provides additional 
opportunities to attract high growth companies across a range of tech sectors.

The site is immediately adjacent to the planned 5,000 home Kingsfleet development and the 
combination will be attractive to companies looking for new premises, in an affordable, well serviced 
location with excellent transport links.

2. Site Constraints

The site has been constrained for many years by lack of access and utilities which has been adversely 
impacting the viability of the TEP site at a key time in the evolution of the Tech Corridor.  These include;

- Requirement for an electricity power upgrade

- Requirement for a new Foul and Surface Drainage scheme

8

Agenda Item 4d



- Requirement for site access

3. Progress

In June 2016, New Anglia LEP approved the allocation of monies from the Local Growth Fund to enable 
the construction of an access roundabout to the TEP site.  The roundabout is ahead of schedule, 
currently aiming for completion by Christmas.

Subject to final approval, a £150k allocation of public monies will be made available to progress bringing 
sufficient utilities to the TEP site to enable a first development to get underway.  Discussions with the 
utilities companies have already commenced.

Discussions continue with the site promoters Pigeon Investment Management towards the objective of 
bringing a first development to this key employment site.

4. Contribution to Board Objectives

- To seek and lobby for investment and improvement in strategic infrastructure.

- To promote Greater Thetford as a ‘destination of choice’

5. Recommendations

(i) That the board supports the ongoing work of officers to bring the needed infrastructure 
to the TEP site in order to secure development on the site.

Officer Contact

If you have any questions about matters contained in this paper please get in touch with:

Name Telephone Number Email Address

Robert Campbell 01362 656808 robert.campbell@breckland.gov.uk

Appendices
None

Background Documents
None

9



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board
XX November 2018

Item No xx               

Thetford Network Improvement Strategy
Hannah Grimes, Transport Planner, Norfolk County Council

Summary
Norfolk County Council is carrying out a series of market town studies – termed 
Network Improvement Strategies – to identify the most effective transport 
improvements to support future planned growth, help address transport issues such as 
congestion, enhancements to safety and access to public transport, and support the 
local economy. 

A presentation was given to the Board in February outlining the work. Following the 
Board an external workshop was held with stakeholders to ask what they feel are the 
current transport issues in Thetford and indicate what they felt were priorities.

Recommendations 

(i) The Board is asked to note progress.

1. Introduction

Many of Norfolk’s market towns and larger villages have a considerable 
amount of planned housing and employment growth identified through the 
relevant Local Plans. Addressing the transport pressures this growth will bring 
is vital to facilitate the economic prosperity of these towns and villages and as 
such planning this ahead of growth allows the county council to respond 
accordingly.
The suite of market town transport studies will identify the most effective 
transport improvements to support future planned growth and help address 
transport issues such as congestion, enhancements to safety and access to 
public transport.  It is intended that the studies will support the economy of the 
area by helping to prioritise proposed schemes, assist with growth assumptions 
and influence potential funding opportunities in the future and ultimately 
facilitate planned housing and employment growth in these towns and villages
Norfolk County Council’s Environment, Development and Transport committee 
(EDT) in September 2017 agreed that Thetford would be one of the first towns 
to be studied.

2. Work programme

Work on the studies started with an assimilation of evidence about the known, 
existing problems and issues, followed by an external workshop to discuss 
stakeholders’ concerns and priorities, and what existing work is already being 
undertaken.
Norfolk County Council subsequently agreed with stakeholders which aspects 
of the scope to focus resource on. The following technical work has been 
commissioned and is still underway:

10

Agenda Item 4f



 Cycle & walking corridor identification and options – identifying key 
cycle & walking corridors and potential improvements along routes to 
increase active travel

 Network Pinch Point Assessment – identifying traffic using the network 
pinch point on Nun’s Bridge Road, how this is likely to change with the 
addition of extra development and identify measures to alleviate any 
issues found

 Key Junction Testing – Undertake capacity assessment and review of 
key junctions in Thetford considering walking and cycling measures and 
future growth

A draft of the Strategy will be circulated to stakeholders and taken to the 
Greater Thetford Partnership Board before the study is finalised and reported 
back to EDT for adoption. For Thetford, this is anticipated to be early next year.

3. Contribution to Board Objectives

The activity will contribute to Objective 1 to improve infrastructure and 
Objective 6 to encourage economic vitality.

4. Recommendations 
(i)  The Board is asked to note progress.

Officer Contact

If you have any questions about matters contained in this paper please get in touch 
with:

Name Telephone Number Email address

Hannah Grimes 01603 223186 hannah.grimes@norfolk.gov.uk

Appendices

Background Documents

Report to Norfolk County Council Environment Development and Transport Committee 17 
March 2017
Report to Norfolk County Council Environment Development and Transport Committee 15 
September 2017

11



Shopappy towns are clicking!

What is Shopappy? Shopappy is a mobile-
friendly web application designed to encourage 
and provide customers with the online means 
to use local shops and businesses directly and 
more frequently. The app will support shops and 
businesses reach more potential customers online 
and promotes shopping local.

What does it do?  
Shopappy enables people who live, work and 
visit the Breckland market towns to easily browse 
products and services in each town with the added 

benefit of enabling them to click & collect their 
shopping at a convenient time during the day. 
Shopappy promises customers “Convenience  
with a local conscience”.

What can shops gain? 
Shopappy gives every shop their own website 
within the platform that they can then use to 
promote their own shop on social media, or their 
own blogs. Shopappy also includes events and 
experiences product categories, local blogs, 
featured blogs, featured shops/events and 
advertising for specific initiatives for each location.

MARKET TOWNS INITIATIVE
www.breckland.gov.uk/onedistrictfivetowns	 Autumn	2018

Breckland Council’s Market Towns Initiative (MTI) has allocated 
more than £200,000 to projects over the last 12 months, which 
will support our market towns and surrounding areas to thrive.  

As well as delivering our own projects under MTI, we have also fully-
funded or contributed to schemes put forward by our partners, which 
will make our towns more attractive and encourage residents and 
visitors to visit our high streets. 
 
Around £70k of the funding has been assigned since August and 
we continue to welcome expressions of interest from our partners. 
Schemes recently supported by the council include a new season of 
‘On The Green’ events in Thetford, free wifi in Swaffham town centre, 
a town centre development study for Dereham, and new market stalls 
shared between Watton and Swaffham.

£70k	MTI	approved	since	August

Market Towns Initiative 
Projects	funded	in	2018
•  Shopappy
•  The Glutton
•  Thetford Murals
•  Swaffham Buttercross
•  Watton and Swaffham  

Market Stalls
•  Watton and Swaffham 

Parkruns
•  Thetford Events on  

the Green
•  Dereham Town Centre  

pre-feasibility

12

Agenda Item 5



Dereham	
town centre – 
a new look?
What is it? Dereham Town 
Council are seeking to 
commission NCC to carry out 
prefeasibility design work to test 
the viability of reconfiguring the 
market place which:

•  Retains sufficient on-street 
parking and traffic flow

•  Provide sufficient bus stops to 
meet current and future needs

•  Provide sufficient spaces for 
taxis, loading and disabled 
parking.

What does it do? The key 
concept to be tested by the 
prefeasibility work will be to 
make greater use of Quebec 
Street for turning buses and 
traffic movements, thereby 
freeing up space in the Market 
Place. This concept has been 
discussed with NCC highways 
who have confirmed that the 
idea is technically feasible.

What will it achieve? 
Following on from the pre-
feasibility / technical viability 
work by Norfolk County 
Council, architects would be 
commissioned to produce two 
concept type drawings for the 
market place. 

Both these pieces of work 
would then be used to carry 
out public consultation which 
could then be used to produce a 
vision for the Market Place and 
full feasibility work.

Thetford Murals – don’t tell 
him	your	name,	Pike!
What’s it all about? Improvements to key town centre buildings 
to enhance the visitor and shopper experience. The project will see 
spaces that have been overlooked and uncared for painted with 
themes that relate to the history of Dad’s Army. 

The Dad’s Army Museum in the town is the focus of a lot of visitor 
activity and provides the opportunity to create renewed interest in the 
connections that exist between the town and the Dad’s Army once 
filmed in the town.

Clean	sweep	in	all	five	towns!
What is it?  The Glutton operates as a street based vacuum 
cleaner that can be used quickly and efficiently to clear litter and 
general waste (including cigarette butts and dog faeces) off the 
high street. The Breckland Glutton is operated within the five 
market towns, one day each per week.

What will shops gain? The Glutton aims to provide shoppers 
and businesses with cleaner streets and therefore improves the 
shopper experience. The fact that litter can play a factor in the 
negative experience that shoppers have when visiting the high 
street could result in avoiding areas that are unsightly and uncared 
for with the potential to decrease shopper spend in the town.

“The Market Towns Initiative can support projects that  
make	our	market	towns	viable	and	sustainable”

13



What is it?  
Watton and Swaffham Market 
Stalls project will provide 
10 new market stalls shared 
between the two towns. On 
market days the stalls will be 
erected to provide additional 
capacity adjacent to the existing 
markets. The town councils 
are working together with a 
shared events officer to develop 

Watton	and	Swaffham	Market	Stalls

One District – Five Towns

New Parkrun in Watton 
What is it? Parkrun UK are working with in Watton to organise free,  
weekly, 5km timed runs around the Leisure Centre grounds and Loch  
Neaton. The runs will be open to everyone, free, and safe and easy to  
take part in. Both Thetford (2013) and Swaffham Parkruns (2018) have  
received funding from Breckland Council and each currently attracts  
250+ and 75+ runners per week.

What will it do? A local group of community volunteers will deliver the  
Watton Parkrun. Based on the schemes locally, it is expected that the  
number of this group of volunteers will grow as the project develops and  
more runners register. A core of volunteers has already been recruited.

“Market Towns Initiative can support projects  
that	create	vibrant	town	centres”

a menu of new and existing 
events to ensure that the market 
stalls income is maximised 
and that the value of the stalls 
in supporting economic and 
community benefits.

What does it do?  
Both markets will be improved 
and will grow in size. The central 
idea for the project focuses 

on making the markets more 
attractive to new entrants into 
trading on the high street and 
developing entrepreneurial skills 
generally. For customers the 
appeal of having new stalls is to 
enhance the retail offer. For the 
community the stalls will add 
value to events throughout the 
year.

What are the benefits?  
While there are many farmers’ 
markets in the north and east 
of the county, there is little 
activity in Breckland and 
central Norfolk. There is a real 
opportunity to develop this new 
offer across the two towns. 

The project team have 
experience of running farmers’ 
markets and will be able to 
develop the menu of events as 
the project gathers pace.

One District Five Towns is the external brand name for the Breckland Market Towns Initiative.  
It also brands the new web pages with a statement that captures the spirit of the Initiative and the  
funding that goes with the scheme to support Market Towns across Breckland. Take a look at  
www.onedistrictfivetowns.com

The first step to submitting a proposal seeking Market Towns Initiative funding is to contact the MTI  
Co-ordinator to discuss the idea and to look at ways that this can turn into a funded project. The MTI 
Steering Group meet every month and can receive Expressions of Interest to provide feedback to the 
applicant on whether they should submit a full proposal or seek alternative funding.

Contact details: John Mullen, Market Towns Initiative  
Project Co-ordinator Breckland Council
DDI: 01362 656275 • Mobile: 07880 300277
Email: john.mullen@breckland.gov.uk • www.breckland.gov.uk

14


	Agenda
	4a Expansion of parking at Thetford Station
	4b Ely Railway Junction improvements
	4c Thetford Kingsfleet (SUE)
	4d Thetford Enterprise Park
	4f Network Improvement Strategy (roads)
	5 Market Town Initiative

